ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COWWERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 2, 2001
3:20 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representati ve Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO. 70
"An Act extending the termnation date of the State Physical
Therapy and QOccupati onal Therapy Board."

- MOVED CSHB 70(L&C) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 50

"An Act extending the termnation date of the State Board of
Registration for Architects, Engineers, and Land Surveyors to
June 30, 2005; relating to the tenporary nenber of that board,
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 50 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 27

"An  Act relating to the licensure and registration of
i ndividuals who perform hone inspections; relating to hone
i nspection requirenents for residential |oans purchased or

approved by the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation; relating to
civil actions by and agai nst hone inspectors; and providing for
an effective date.™

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BILL NO 73

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 2, 2001



"An Act extending the termnation date of the Board of
Vet eri nary Exam ners."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 74
"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of Barbers
and Hairdressers."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 70
SHORT TITLE: EXTENDI NG BOARD OF PHYSI CAL/ OCC THERAPY
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) CRAWFORD, Hayes

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/17/01 0111 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME- REFERRALS
01/17/01 0111 (H) L&C, FIN

01/31/01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
01/31/01 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 02/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
BILL: HB 50

SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND BD OF ARCHI TECTS, ENG NEERS, ETC.
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/10/01 0051 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME- REFERRALS
01/10/01 0051 (H L&C, FIN

01/10/01 0051 (H FN1: ( CED)

01/10/01 0051 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
01/16/01 0084 (H CORRECTED TRANSM TTAL LETTER
02/ 02/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
BILL: HB 27

SHORT TI TLE: LI CENSE HOVE | NSPECTORS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) ROKEBERG

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/ 08/ 01 0031 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/01
01/08/01 0031 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME- REFERRALS
01/ 08/ 01 0031 (H L&C, JUD, FIN

01/ 08/ 01 0031 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COMVERCE
01/ 31/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
01/31/01 (H Heard & Held

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 2, 2001



01/31/01
02/ 02/ 01 Text

M NUTES( L&C)
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

T

W TNESS REG STER

KAREN GRAFTON, President

Al aska Physi cal Therapy Associ ation

1282 Troy Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99515

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 70.

MARY VEAL, Physical Therapi st

Al aska Chapter of the American Physical Therapy Association
8940 N. Dougl as Hi ghway

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 70.

CATHERI NE REARDON, Director

Di vi sion of Cccupational Licensing

Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent

P. O Box 110806

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 79, HB 50, and HB 27 for
t he divi sion.

JAMES BI BB, President

Anerican Institute of Architects, Al aska Chapter

522 West 10th

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 50 and conti nuing
educati on.

DWAYNE ADAMS

Anerican Soci ety of Landscape Architects

13231 Reef Pl ace

Anchor age, Al aska 99515

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 50.

TED VEAL, Honer Resi dent

539 El derberry Drive

Homer, Al aska 99603

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 27.

FRANKO VENUTI, Honmer Resi dent

P. 0. Box 3652

Homer, Al aska 99603

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 27.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 2, 2001



AMY DAUGHERTY, Lobbyi st

Al aska Prof essi onal Design Counci

327 West 11t h Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 27.

JOHN BI TNEY, Legislative Liaison

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation

4300 Boni face Avenue

Anchor age, Al aska 99510

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 27.

TERRI LAUTERBACH, Legislative Counsel

D vision of Legal and Research Services

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 329

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TION STATEMENT: Clarified |language in HB 27 for the
comm ttee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-11, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR LISA MJRKOMSKI called the House Labor and Commerce
Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:20 p.m

HB 70- EXTENDI NG BOARD OF PHYSI CAL/ OCC THERAPY

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI said the commttee would begin by taking up
HOUSE BILL NO. 70, "An Act extending the term nation date of the
State Physical Therapy and Cccupati onal Therapy Board.™

Nunmber 0146

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD, sponsor of HB 70, stated the bill 1is
designed to extend the sunset date for [the board of] physical
and occupational therapists until 2005. He said there is broad
support for extending the board and there is no known protest.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said the bill anmends Section 1 of AS

08. 03. 010, subsection (c) (16), and extends the date from the
year 2001 to 2005. He asked for the conmttee's support.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 2, 2001



CHAIR MJRKOWSKI said the [legislative] audit report nmade a
reconmendation to extend the board for a six-year period. She
asked if there was a reason it was only extended to 2005 instead
of 2007.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said four years was the standard tine
and he didn't want to change what had been done before.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT nentioned that a few years back, the
commttee made a conscientious decision to start |ooking at
extending the sunset boards to six years. He said that m ght be
the reason the audit report reflects six years. He said it
causes a headache to have to revisit these [boards] every four
years so they made it six years.

Number 0400

KAREN CGRAFTON, President, Alaska Physical Therapy Association
(APTA) , t hanked Representative Crawford for issuing the
| egi slation and said APTA supports the bill as it's witten.
She added that she would support extending the sunset date for
six years instead of just the four [years].

Number 0439

MARY VEAL, Physical Therapist, Alaska Chapter of the Anerican
Physi cal Therapy Associ ation, thanked the commttee for
supporting the bill and nentioned they too would support
extending the bill for six years.

Nunber 0474

CATHERI NE REARDON, Director, Division of QOccupational Licensing,
Department of Community and Econom c¢ Devel opnent (DCED), said
her division staffs the various |l|icensing boards that the
commttee will hear about today. She said the division supports
the continuation of the board for as long as the conmttee feels
confortable.

M5. REARDON said it was probably [on] her advice that the
sponsor of the bill went with four years. She said two years
ago, the Division of Legislative Audit ("Legislative Audit")
recommended durations ranging from four to eight years for
different boards. This was an attenpt to spread out the sunset
audit work. She said a couple [of boards] nade it through [the
House] wth Ilonger durations between sunset reviews, and a
couple of Senators responded with frustration in receiving the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 2, 2001



bills, not because they had problenms with the particul ar boards,
but because it was an established principle - that a board
shoul d be continued for four years.

M5. REARDON said the view nmay have changed but in responding to
that experience, wth this one exception, all of the Legislative
Audit recommendati ons have been for four years. She said "they"
became nore conservative and decided not to ask for nore. She
said she thought Legislative Audit would be happy to have | onger
extensions for sone of these board, and "they" woul d too.

CHAI R MURKOWASKI asked Ms. Reardon if she thought this profession
generates concerns or investigations that would necessitate
being audited on a nore frequent basis, nore than the four-year
rotation.

M5. REARDON said she is confortable as long as the [sunset] date
does not interfere with ultimte passage, and as long as the
sunset audit reflects few concerns from the Division of
Legi sl ative Audit.

M5. REARDON said she believes this is the only board, before the
commttee, where the Legislative Audit has recomended a | onger
extension. She said she didn't know why that happened.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked if the boards would ask Legislative Audit
to consider them for |onger periods of tinme before sunset review
- whether it is [considered] typical

Number 0759

M5. REARDON said the division and the boards have never had to
and never felt it was their place to ask. However, she said, if
the length of time [between sunset audits] were less than four
years, "they" would probably ask Legislative Audit what they
were worried about.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO expl ai ned that when the conmittee gets an
audit from Legislative Audit stating deficiencies in a
departnment, the conmttee works with the departnment to correct
them He said he is not sure why the commttee wouldn't accept
their recomrendation to extend the sunset to 2007.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he feels confortable extending the
sunset audit to 2007 now that he has heard from Ms. Reardon;
there seened to be sone adversity before. He said he would be
glad to anmend the bill

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 2, 2001



Nunmber 0889

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT concurred with Representative Crawford. He
made a notion to conceptually anmend the bill to extend the
sunset review for the Board of Physical and Cccupati onal Therapy
to 2007.

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI stated that there being no objection, the
conceptual anendnment was adopt ed.

Nunber 1016

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT nade a notion to nove HB 70, as anended, out
of conmttee with individual recomendations and attached zero
fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB 70(L&0) was
reported out of the House Labor and Comrerce Standing Committee.

HB 50- EXTEND BD OF ARCHI TECTS, ENG NEERS, ETC.

Nunmber 1058

CHAI R MURKOWSKI announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 50, "An Act extending the term nation date of
the State Board of Registration for Architects, Engineers, and
Land Surveyors to June 30, 2005; relating to the tenporary
menber of that board; and providing for an effective date.”

CATHERI NE REARDON, Director, Division of Occupational Licensing,
Department of Community and Econonic Devel opnent (DCED), said
she appreciates the commttee hearing the bill to extend the
sunset date. She said the bill was introduced by request of the
governor, because of the second issue addressed in the bill -
the tenporary | andscape architect board nenber.

M5. REARDON said last year, the governor introduced a bill
addressing the topic, and there was a lack of wunanimty of
bel i ef about what shoul d happen with the position. She said she
bel i eved the governor wanted to bring conclusion to the topic by
wor ki ng out a conprom se, bringing it forward with the division
as the sponsor.

M5. REARDON said the bill extends the sunset date to 2005, as
reconmended by the sunset audit. She said Section 2 of the bil

extends the tenporary, non-voting |andscape architect board
menber seat, until 2005. She explained that the seat would

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 2, 2001



di sappear at the next sunset date - giving the legislature tine
to decide what to do with the seat.

Nunber 1206

MS. REARDON stated | andscape architects were added as a group to
be licensed by the board a few years ago. She conj ectured that
there are just ten |andscape architects; that is one of the
reasons "they" believe the tenporary non-voting mnenber status
should be continued, rather than making it a permanent seat.
She added that the board regul ates approximtely 5,000 people,
so 10 or 12 is a small nunber.

M5. REARDON added that it is a good idea to have a non-voting
| andscape architect on the board because it is a new profession
for the division and the board; having the person at the table
contributes valuable information about how the profession works.
She said the board continues to consider its first applications,
eval uate people's work experience and training, and cone up with
reasonabl e regul ati ons governing the profession. She conti nued
by saying it is a good tine to have that representation at the
table, but not necessarily the tinme to nake it a permanent
voting seat.

M5. REARDON said the other change to the status of the non-
voting | andscape-architect position appears on page 2, |line 4,
where there is a bracket around the word "not". She expl ai ned
that the current statute says the non-voting nenber is not
entitled to receive state noney for per diem or travel to the
board neetings. If this bill passes, people will be eligible to
have their plane ticket and hotel paid for by the state when
participating in board neetings. She relayed that the division
thinks this is a good idea; it is awkward and confusing to have
a board nenbers sponsored by their professional association, or
| ooking for noney [to attend neetings].

M5. REARDON said the sunset audit included a few recommendati ons
that were responded to jointly by the division and board; they
appear in the submtted letter on the | ast page of the audit.

M5. REARDON comrented that at this time "they" are not
reconmendi ng any statute changes in response to t he
reconmendat i ons.

Number 1335

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 2, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Ms. Reardon if she is speaking for
the departnent or the board today.

MS5. REARDON responded that she is wearing two hats today; she is
al ways speaking for the departnent and did work in concert with
the board on the letter of response to the audit. She added
that she discussed it wth them and "they" decided jointly on
what the letter would say to represent their views.

VB. REARDON clarified that on the Jlast sentence of her

presentation where she said, "W are not recomending any
statute changes in response to the audit at this tine," she was
speaking for the departnent. She said the board thought it

m ght be good to add perm ssive language to its statute that
would allow the board, if it so chose, to require continuing
education by regulation; that is stated under the Audit Report,
Agency Response, Reconmendation 1.

M5. REARDON said she heard testinony in the Senate on the
conpanion bill [to HB 50], and it appears that there is still
di sagreenent wthin the industry about mandatory continuing
education. She said because of the lack of consensus, it m ght
not be good to have it attached to HB 50. She said perhaps the
Al aska Professional Design Council could speak to the issue.

Nunber 1435

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG reni nded Chair Miurkowski and Ms. Reardon
that it is "their" responsibility to |look after and protect the
interest of the citizens of Alaska. He said he agrees with the
audit, but is reluctant to recomend that board nenbers have
"their toes stepped on."

M5. REARDON said continuing education requirenents are not
universal anong all of the professions in the Division of
Qccupational Licensing; they are comon with the health care
prof essions but not universal. She added that nost nenbers of
the engineering and architect i ndustry acknow edge that
continuing education is comng, but know that they are not at
that point yet. She said the issues that would arise, from
people who don't want mandatory continuing education, at this
time would be: that it is a hardship for people outside of the
maj or netropolitan areas of Alaska; and it 1is expensive for
"them to get continuing education. She added that there isn't
research showing that continuing education requirenents reduce
i nconpetence in a profession.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 2, 2001



M5. REARDON went on to say that responsible professionals
educate thenselves every year in a variety of ways including

attending conferences, reading materials, and so forth. She
said when talking about requirenents for license renewal, it
needs to be kept in mnd that for bureaucratic reasons,
continuing education needs to be docunented and verified. She

said it is hard to recognize the genuine self-education that a
conpet ent professional mght do; without the diploma, it is hard
to know whomto grant [licenses to].

Number 1581

M5. REARDON said sone professionals are trying to weigh whether
the hassle will be beneficial to consuners. She said a person
mght take a course that isn't worth nmuch and not pay nuch
attention. Therefore, "we" would be penalizing the responsible
people that are already doing self-education by nmaking them
spend noney. She nentioned that this mght be an argunent that
opponents m ght have about nmandatory continui ng educati on.

M5. REARDON said "they" feel Recomendation 2 [from the D vision
of Legislative Audit ("Legislative Audit")] is addressed in the
bill. She said it states that the |egislature [could] consider
revising the nenbership of the board by elimnating the mning-
engi neer's designated seat, and in sone way deal wth the

tenporary | andscape-architect seat. She said this bill deals
with the |andscape-architect tenporary seat but does not renobve
the m ning-engineer seat - a topic taken up by the legislature
in the past.

M5. REARDON said there is an appreciation of the mning industry
in Al aska. And just because the nunber of mning engineers in
Alaska is small, it doesn't nmean there shouldn't be soneone at
the table who knows about correct mning engineering. She added
that renoving the seat [from the board] gives the perception
that Al aska doesn't care as nmuch about mning as it ought to
which is the reason the governor didn't propose renoving the
seat in this bill

M5. REARDON finalized her testinony by saying that "they"
believe the final item the board addressed in regulation was an
anbiguity in the architecture statutes.

Number 1680

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT concurred wth Representative Rokeberg's
previ ous statenment that "they" are charged with | ooking out for

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 2, 2001



the public's interest; he referred to the recomendations in the
report and a letter from Jeffery WIson, President, Al aska

Pr of essi onal Design Council (APDC), and Sam Kito Ill, Chair. He
said their letter leads him to believe that there is not
consensus on t he reconmendat i ons [ Legi sl ative Audi t
recommendations for changes to AS 08]. He said "they" do

support the extension of the Board of Regi stration for
Architects, Engineers, and Land Surveyors (BRAELS).

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said the governor's bill went beyond just
t he BRAELS extension. He asked if the issues were taken up at
the board neeting, and if "they" supported the way it cane
t oget her.

Nunber 1728

M5. REARDON said the board was supportive of the |anguage used
in the bill now, "Extending the tenporary non-voting nenber",
and paying for the cost of the nenber. She said the board

clearly gave her the nessage that she was to try and achieve
this.

CHAI R MJURKOWSKI asked Ms. Reardon if the board had considered
vol untary continuing education with an offset to |icensure fees.
She said the Al aska Bar Association (ABA) does this and it is an
alternative to mandatory continui ng education

M5. REARDON said she hadn't thought of it, but it |looked as if
the legal profession was sort of in the sane situation as the
design professionals, where there is not wunanimty of belief
about continuing education. She said this is apparent in rura
ar eas.

Nunber 1770

M5. REARDON explained that voluntary continuing education has
been instituted and wuld be considered a mtigating
circunstance if a person is faced with disciplinary action;
doi ng continuing education would be a "star” in a person's favor
during sanctions. She added that there is also a 10 percent
reduction in the renewal fee. She said she didn't talk to the
board about it [instituting a voluntary system |ike the ABA s],
because when she talked to them she wasn't aware of the idea.
She went on to say that the departnent sets the fees, so it
woul d take departnental action to decide what the anpount woul d
be for soneone doi ng continui ng educati on.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 2, 2001



M5. REARDON clarified that she wouldn't be opposed to a fee
system [li ke ABA's] and would be | ooking to the professionals to
self-certify that they did the education; wthout a requirenent
for licensure, there is no reason to audit. She said the board
may want to think about it, and she does not know if it would
require a change in statute.

Nunmber 1865

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI said the ABA is not <checking to ensure
conpl etion of continuing education; there is no additional cost,
and it is a way to encourage continuing education. She
encouraged Ms. Reardon to bring it up [with the board].

Nunmber 1888

JAMES BIBB, President, Anerican Institute of Architects (AlA)
Al aska Chapter, said he supports the extension of the sunset for
t he BRAELS. He said the AIA is ready to support continuing
education and has, for several vyears, developed continuation
educat i on. He said "they" see the benefits to the profession
and are ready to support the state on this issue. And he said:

This is strictly within the architects association,
with the AIA, and does not really represent the design
professionals of Alaska - so that is sonething to be
not ed.

MR. BIBB said "they" would support mandatory conti nui ng
education and have seen it in many states across the nation;
Oregon and Florida just passed this [legislation]. He said it
is something "they" anticipated, and there is a format in place
to gain 18 hours of learning units a year; sonme [education]
areas cover health and welfare in the profession, which are
fairly well organi zed.

Number 1970

MR, BIBB said the AIA also supports extending the tenporary
[ non-voting | andscape-architect] board nenber seat. He said
there is an issue regarding Recommendation 3 - clarifying the

statutes and keeping them clean. He said across the nation, AA
recommends against restricting licensure to a single process.
He said AlIA is looking at the National Council of Architectura
Regi stration Board (NCARB). He explained that NCARB is in
place, so if a person becones certified through a national

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 2, 2001



boar d, the Alaska board of licensing accepts it as a
requirenent.

MR. BIBB explained that NCARB standardizes education and
training across the country. He said the AlIA is concerned about
menbers |licensed in other states; "they" want to nake sure, upon
entry into Al aska, that "they" are accepted in sone format. He
said AlA doesn't want to restrict prospective I|icensees, and
would like to see an alternative route devel oped. He added that
the AIA wants to ensure that the revision of the statute is
conpleted. He said in sone way, AlA is asking for the anmendnent
to be set aside and reworded.

MR. BIBB said AIA represents about 75 percent of the I|icensed
architects in Al aska; they don't have consensus, and would |ike
it before noving forward with NCARB exclusively. He said he has
a neno for the commttee that would provide sone clarity.

Number 2040

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said he was going in this direction when he
commenting on Recomrendation 3. He said he would like to read
it [the nmenp] and ensure that it accurately reflects the
position of the board. He said the statute is semantically
unclear to the board, the way it is currently worded. He said
he doesn't believe consensus can be reached wth every design
prof essional. However, if there is a problemthat the conmmttee
can fix to nake it semantically clear, they should do it. He
said he would |ike to hear from others as to whether the
commttee is taking the right approach in nmoving the bill out
W t hout corrective action.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked M. Bi bb about the BRAELS beconing an
aut ononous board.

MR. BIBB said he did not know anything about it but said M.
Reardon m ght have infornmation

Number 2113

M5. REARDON said over the last five or six years, the
architecture industry has expressed an interest in sonme type of
aut onony from the division. She wasn't aware of the industry's
current thinking, and thought there were varying opinions
anongst the 5,000 Al askans [nenbers].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 2, 2001



M5. REARDON expl ained that there had been |egislation and debate
on the topic a few years ago. She said within the departnent,
it came down to the definition of autonony. She said autonony
could nean many things, such as when a profession or program
wants to be outside the Division of Cccupational Licensing and
formits own governnent agency, as a separate entity, not a part
of the whole package. She said it would be like the Regul atory
Comm ssion of Alaska or something along those Iines. She said
autonony could also nean [being] outside governnment altogether
or sonewhere in between.

M5. REARDON said deciding on the definition of autonony can be
difficult. She said while the departnment and possibly the
adm nistration, as a whole, mght have strong views about having
self-regulation outside governnment, a different response m ght
be received froma proposal to | eave occupational |icensing.

VS. REARDON said in talking about | eaving occupati onal

licensing, one gets into financial, econom es-of-scale-type
I ssues. And in talking about Ileaving state governnent
conpletely, there are issues for groups not connected wth
elected officials, including: fining people, disciplining

peopl e, and saying who can and can't practice the profession.
She said personally, she feels it is inportant to have el ected
representatives or governnent involved because otherw se there
is a guild.

M5. REARDON said she hopes if occupational licensing neets the
needs of the industry well enough, wthin the division, the
interest in leaving will |essen.

Nunmber 2253

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked about the |anguage in the statute
contained in the [legislative] audit [page 9] in the bold

section, "in the opinion of the board,” wth respect to
reciprocity and registration of soneone from another state. He
said "the opinion of the board" was sonmewhat troubling. He

asked Ms. Reardon if the board had ever offered reciprocity.

M5. REARDON answered by saying the board frequently grants
licenses to architects licensed in other states. She said she
t hought the board always required the NCARB certification to
come in by reciprocity. She said there are many architects from
ot her places getting |licenses in Al aska.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 2, 2001



M5. REARDON expl ained that the board is not saying that no one
can conme in from outside, that one nust cone in fresh to Al aska.
She said the |anguage in the statute inplies that there are two
tracks [to reciprocity]: holding a license from another state,
or holding an NCARB certification. She said the board
interprets both tracks the sane.

Number 2313

DWAYNE ADAMS, Anerican Society of Landscape Architects (ASLA),
said they accept the legislation as witten and had worked
closely wth M. Reardon, who did a good job capturing the
i ssues - those pertaining to | andscape architects, the tenporary
board nenber, and conti nui ng educati on.

MR. ADAMS said the ASLA has a national council, the Landscape
Architects Registration Board (LARB), which is nuch |ike NCARB

for architects. He said "they" deal with continuing education
every year, and 10 percent of the states that are 1|icensed
require continuing education. He said it is sonmewhat

probl ematic because LARB doesn't provide the [continuing
education] tracking that NCARB does.

MR. ADAMS explained that in states that require continuing
education for licensure, there are costs and adm nistrative tine
i nvolved in deciding on appropriate courses and nai ntenance. He
said LARB is in favor of continuing education. He said it is
sel dom that a nmenber would not conply. He said the questions
that remain include how to track it, and how to handle the
adm ni strati on.

Nunber 2436

SAM KI TO, Chair, Al aska Professional Design Council (APDC), said
APDC supports the extension of the sunset and the | andscape-
architect tenporary board nenber position, consistent with HB
50. He referred to the audit recomendations and said the
engi neering comrunity agrees on continuing education, but not on
how it should be inplenented. He said this is why APDC has
asked that it not be considered at this tine [in HB 50]. He
said additional discussion with all of the design professionals
is necessary to inplenment the continuing education program

TAPE 01-11, SIDE B

Nunber 2452

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 2, 2001



MR KITO said with respect to the "architectural comty" issue,
they defer to the AIA since it is primarily an architects’
i ssue. He said as an organization that also represents the
architects, APDC concurs with AlA on the issue.

MR KITO clarified that from APDC s perspective, with respect to
AELS board autonony, the Division of OCccupational Licensing was
put on program receipts for the board | ast year; APDC would |ike
to see what the inpacts would be. He said:

AELS aut onony would have benefited our professions on

the board. [ There were two issues] ... Those two
issues were the issues of travel, ... whether or not
there would be flexibility to travel out of state for
prof essional functions, and ... the issue of I|icensed

di sciplinary action enforcenent.

MR KITO went on to say that with nore control over the fee
structure and spending within the AELS board structure, APDC
wants to see how the changes address sone of the problens that
t hey have seen, and the board's ability to operate.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if APDC s nenbers were surveyed to
see if they would accept a fee increase.

MR. KITO said the nenbership did not have a problem w th paying
addi tional noney to provide the services for the board nenbers.
He said the issues [raised] were about budget restrictions and
whet her funding could be used if the fees were increased.

Nunber 2372

M5. REARDON said last year the legislature decided to nopve
occupational licensing receipts into a new receipt-supported
services category. She said at the same tinme they granted
expenditure authority for travel so the BRAELS coul d
participate in national neetings. She said as a result,

participation in out-of-state professional conferences for the
board has increased significantly this year

M5. REARDON said investigations and enforcenent actions are
areas that still need to be addressed; the travel issue has been
addressed by the |egislature.

CHAIR MJRKOWNSKI asked M. Kito about voluntary educational

comm tments and whet her he thought ADPC nenbers voluntarily take
ongoi ng educational semnars to stay current [in the industry].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- February 2, 2001



MR. KITO said there are sem nar progranms circulating throughout
the country for engineering professionals that have continuing
education credits recognized in other states. He said the
credits are available to the ADPC nenbership in Al aska. He
added that there are sem nars taken by engi neering professionals
in Alaska that qualify [then] for continuing education credit in
ot her jurisdictions.

MR. KITO explained that it is not a matter of whether continuing
education should happen, but "how' it should happen in order to
be fair to all professionals.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said the board could be set up to issue a

license to soneone who is not NCARB certified. He said he
doesn't want to hold the bill wup, if it is the wish of the
committee to nove it out. He noted that it has a House Fi nance
Commttee referral, and wll eventually end up in the House

Rules Committee, where he could develop |anguage with the help
of the professions.

CHAI R MURKWOSKI asked Ms. Reardon about the Senate conpanion
bill and whether the Senate has done anything that woul d address
Representative Kott's concern.

Nunber 2229

M5. REARDON said the identical bill [to HB 50] passed out of the
Senate Finance Commttee this norning and the issue of comty
wasn't addressed.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said he was not ready to nmke an anendnent
to the bill; he wants to talk to the professionals and find out
if the issue of comty needs to be addressed.

Nunmber 2181

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO noved to report HB 50 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 50 was nobved out of the
House Labor and Conmerce Standing Committee.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said it mght be good to send HB 50 to the
House Judiciary Conmittee to address whether it is a legal issue
and whether there is liability fromthe board' s perspective. He
said if the board is challenged [by a prospective |licensee], the
guestion would be raised as to whether they would have to issue

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- February 2, 2001



the license w thout NCARB certification. [HB 50 was reported
out of commttee.]

HB 27-LI CENSE HOMVE | NSPECTORS

Nunber 2108

CHAI R MURKOWSKI said the next bill the commttee would consider
would be HOUSE BILL NO 27, "An Act relating to the licensure
and registration of individuals who perform hone inspections;
relating to home inspection requirenents for residential |oans
purchased or approved by the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation

relating to civil actions by and against hone inspectors; and
providing for an effective date."

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI said a fair ampunt of information was received

since the committee last took up the bill on January 1, 2001
In addition, she stated that there was an anendnent from the
sponsor, and three pages of single-spaced comments from

Cat heri ne Reardon, Director, D vision of Occupational Licensing,
Department of Community and Econom c Devel opnent ( DCED)

Nunber 2041

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, speaking as the sponsor of HB 27, said
he would review the information the conmttee had received and
add public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated he had submitted sone technical
amendrments and one substantive anendnent to the conmittee. He
said the commttee would hear public testinony and hold the bil

over while he reviews the information submtted by the Division

[ of Cccupational Licensing]. He said he was upset about the
subm ssion and didn't expect the commttee to go through it line
by [Iine. He said the conmmttee also received a letter of
support from State Farm Insurance, and a letter fromthe Stanley
famly in Honmer, Alaska, which was sent to Bill Pellman at the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC). The Stanleys | ost
$130, 000, he not ed.

Number 1879

TED VEAL, Honer resident, asked about revisions to the bill. He

said it appears that it [the bill] is being pursued because the
real estate community s having problens wth inspectors
retained to inspect houses. He asked about the thought process
behind putting a "real estate individual” on the inspector

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- February 2, 2001



board, rather than a residential honme building contractor or
soneone el se.

MR. VEAL asked who would develop the requirenents under the
continued conpetency requirenment in Version F [adopted as a work
draft on January 31, 2001], page 3, line 25 of the bill, and
asked what they would include. He asked if the departnent would
produce the "board and departnental publications and sem nars

related to this chapter” from page 4, line 15 [of the bill], for
| i censed inspectors. He said the pre-inspection docunent
required on page 5, |ine 19 [of the bill] is redundant because

when an International Conference of Building Oficials (I1CBO
i nspection is done, the builder requests a particular inspection
from the inspector; for the inspector to submt a witten
docunent stating that he is comng to do the inspection seens
| i ke nmore paperworKk.

MR. VEAL said in his experience, once the builder of the project
satisfies the particular requirenents for the inspection, a
summary of building inspections for site-built construction form
is signed off [on]; a lengthy report isn't necessarily witten
about the condition of the sign-off.

MR. VEAL referred to proposed anendnent F.1 [22-LS0136\F.1,
Laut erbach, 2/2/01], which read:

Page 1, line 14, follow ng "broker":

I nsert ", associ ate broker,"

Page 3, lines 10 - 13:
Delete all material.
Insert "examnation nust include a witten portion; the
exam nation may, as determ ned by the board,
(A use testing nethodologies in addition
to the witten portion;

(B) test for conpetency in relation to
Al aska construction techniques and ot her matters;
(O be based on a recognized nationa

exam nation or other nethodol ogy;"
Page 6, line 7:
Del ete "conm ssi on"
| nsert "board"

Page 10, line 6:
Delete "interior"

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- February 2, 2001



Page 12, followi ng line 23:

Insert new bill sections to read:
"* Sec. 8. AS 18.56.300(c) is repeal ed.
* Sec. 9. The uncodified law of the State of Al aska is

anended by addi ng a new section to read:

APPLI CABI LI TY. The change nmade by sec. 8 of this Act
applies to causes of action that accrue on or after July 1,
2003. "

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 13, |ine 19:
Delete "or"
I nsert "and"
Page 14, following line 22:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 15. Sections 8 and 9 of this Act take effect July 1,
2003. "

Page 14, |ine 23:
Delete "11 and 12"
| nsert "13 - 15"

[ End of anendnent F. 1]

MR. VEAL referred to the portion of anmendnent F.1 that anends
page 12, line 23, to insert a new bill section to read: "'*Sec.
8 AS 18.56.300(c) is repealed.”

MR. VEAL said the proposed anendnent |imts sone of the
liability of the inspector wunless he or she 1is grossly
negl i gent. He said if this section were repealed, the

i nspectors would be subject to an inordinate amobunt of exposure
that could cause nmany people to cease to perform that function
there nmay be a problem with having enough inspectors in Al aska,
particularly in rural comunities.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, responding to M. Veal's question about

page 3, line 25, of Version F, said the position [on the board]
is [to be] either a real estate appraiser or a real estate
br oker. He said he has a proposed anendnent to expand it to a
real estate associate broker. He went on to say the real estate
i ndustry has an interest in the issue and [the position] should
be on the board. He said the board has five nenbers and an ex

of ficio nenber, including a representative from AHFC.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- February 2, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG responded to the question of who would

be devel oping the requirenents. He referred to [Version F],
page 3, line 25, under the continued conpetency requirenment. He
sai d:

The |evel of conpetency is to be determned by the

board created by this legislation. Publ i cati ons and
so forth - semnars [would be determned] by the
board.

The pre-inspection docunent, | think, primrily

[ addresses the] standards of practice and the existing
hone market where there is a clarity as to what the
scope of work should be - in case there is an
assertion of an om ssion froman inspection report.

In other words, . [the] | evel of  your roof
inspection ... should be in the pre-inspection report
to make sure that you can't bring a subsequent cause
of action, to claimthat you didn't do your job when
you should have, because you nmay have made a conment
about it. Li ke, you think the roof is |eaking, you
put that on there, and if it wasn't [in] the scope of
wor k, then they should have a cause of action.

Nunber 1625

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that part of proposed F.1 repeals
AS 18.56.300(c) effective in 2003, when the transition 1is
conplete. He said there is always a risk, when renoving bl anket
liability from the inspectors, to try and protect the public

but those doing shoddy work will get out. He said due to the
rural nature of Alaska, minimzing the amount of |CBO inspectors
available in rural Alaska could be a problem He said it's
difficult to gauge the effect of it prior to |egislation. "W
can just hope that the conmpetency of individuals throughout the
state is such that the public will be better served.

Number 1472

MR. VEAL concurred with what Representative Rokeberg had said
about the pre-inspection docunent as far as an existing hone
i nspecti on. He wondered, on new construction where an |1CBO
i nspection is taking place, whether "they" would be required to
do the additional paperwrk even though it's evidently not
necessary.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- February 2, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the current bill is drafted this
way. He said it mght be good to review that particular area
and exenpt it, if so.

Number 1414

FRANKO VENUTI, Honer resident, said he was concerned about a
statenent made earlier by Representative Rokeberg in reference
to a letter fromthe Stanleys [famly in Honer]. The case went
to court and the Stanleys argued with the builder over costs

and were found |iable.

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI verified that the committee had received a
| etter regarding the purchase of the Stanleys' hone.

MR. VENUTI said he had not seen a copy of the letter addressed
to Bill Pellman of AHFC dated January 8, 200,1 but would |ike
to.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked M. Venuti to clarify that the
Stanleys went to court and eventually lost; the court found
their clains had no nerit.

MR. VENUTI said they were held liable for costs since no nerit
was found, and he believed they paid the contractor.

Number 1257

AMY DAUGHERTY, Lobbyist, Alaska Professional Design Counci
(APDC), said APDC reviewed the proposed commttee substitute
(CS) and rewote the letter to show their support.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the proposed anendnment, which he
di scussed with John Bitney, Legislative Liaison, Al aska Housing
Fi nance Corporation, repeals AS 18.56.300(c), which says:

A person may not bring an action for damages based on
a duty inmposed by (b) of this section to inspect a
residential wunit wunless the action is for danmages
caused by gross negligence or intentional m sconduct.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG asked M. Bitney if he objected to
removing it from AHFC statute, effective July 1, 2003.

JOHN BI TNEY said he had no objection and wasn't sure what the
thought was at the tinme the bill was drafted. He said it

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- February 2, 2001



appears that the gross-negligent standard, as witten, is a very
hi gh standard [in order] to protect the inspector.

MR. BITNEY said it doesn't seem to affect AHFC, so they don't
have any obj ecti on.

Nunber 1101

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said since it is such a high |Iegal
standard, it would allow an inspector working under AHFC to neet
their requirenents for |ending; inspectors have alnost unlimted
ability to do what they want unless they are grossly negligent.
He said it is a tough standard to prove in court.

Nunber 1054

MR. BITNEY said he believed he had reviewed the letter sent to
Bill Pellman at AHFC [from the Stanley famly]. He said the
hone was failing, but was hesitant to say nuch until he could

check the status.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it is inportant for the reputations
of the Stanley famly and M. Venuti that there is a clear
understanding on public record about what had occurred in the

case. He asked M. Bitney to add information to the public
record, as the bill noves along, to clarify what the position or
case was, and what Al aska Housing did. He said the commttee

doesn't want the public record to unfairly shift the burden on
any party invol ved.

Nunmber 0943

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked Representative Rokeberg if there was a
reason why "they" hadn't |ooked at having a residential
contractor [as a designated seat on the board of inspectors].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ained that there are three nenbers
fromthe industry: one "realtor type", one "appraiser type", and

one public nenber. "They" had wanted to keep the board snall
because of costs. He said residential contractors were
considered but were rejected. He said it is his belief that

hone i nspectors should have the largest role on the board, and a
public nmenber could be a residential contractor. He said:

The people in the real estate industry ... have an
interest in it - and then we had an ex officio nenber

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- February 2, 2001



on the board, presumably from Alaska Housing, ... to
make sure that their interests are protected.

It's great, but | ... would counsel against extending
the board [in order] to keep the fee | ow

CHAIR MJURKOMASKI revisited the issue of the statutes allow ng for
a home inspection to be either witten or oral. She asked for
under st andi ng of why a verbal hone inspection would be all owed.
She said 99 percent of the statutes are only applicable to a
witten hone inspection. She asked why the commttee is
allowing for a provision that would accomnmpdate an oral hone
i nspecti on.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the provision was put in at the
request of the honme inspectors because they like to lead clients
around the hone to point out issues. He said there mght be
sone nerit to having a witten record. He said in alnost all of
the cases there would be a witten report; allowing for the oral
i nspection seens problematic.

Nunber 0699

CHAIR MURKOWBKI reiterated that the report done in witing or
orally is required, and asked, if it is done orally, "lIsn't it
just one person's word against another?" She said if the

commttee is saying that the report must include certain things,
how do you know if there is conpliance, if it was done orally.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG reiterated that he thought t he
i nspectors wanted to be able to |ead people around, and talk to
them about it [issues with the house] too.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said if the intent of the board is to
protect the consuner, he doesn't see how allow ng an oral report
woul d acconplish this. He explained that to protect the
consuner, they need sonmething in witing.

Nunber 0462

TERRI LAUTERBACH, Legislative Council, Division of Legal and
Research Services, said the report referred to in Version F,
page 6, could be oral or witten - referring to the review of
the condition of the systens. She clarified that there is a
requirenent in Version F, page 5, |ine 25-30, which says that
defects noted wll be in a witten report. She expl ai ned t hat

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- February 2, 2001



if the commttee is going to take up the issue of oral versus
witten [reports], they should be aware of this provision too.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO echoed Chair Mirkowski's concern about
consuner protection. He said if a report is in witing, the
buyer would have sonething concrete to refer back to, in order
to prove his or her point if sonmething goes wong wth the
house.

MS. LAUTERBACH said based on what is witten here [in Version
Fl, there would be no report that said there was a defect. She
said this gives sone evidence that the inspector didn't point
out the defect. She enphasized that she is not saying it would
be bad to get rid of the oral report, only that they should keep
the provision in mnd and keep it consistent. She said if the
commttee decides to stick with oral [reports], that should go
on page 5 too; and if not, then all of them would wi nd up being
witten. She said she didn't know if the commttee wanted to
di stingui sh between defects and the condition of the house, as
to whether [the report] is witten or oral, but wants themto be
treated together [throughout the bill].

Nunber 0413

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said even if there is an oral report,
there has to be a witten pre-inspection report. He said the
commttee could anmend that portion, so it doesn't preclude ora
reports.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said he noticed simlarities between

real estate brokers and real estate appraisers. He advocat ed
for consistency when witing laws that deal with virtually the
sane types of things - such as home buying and consuner

protection.
Number 0147

CATHERI NE REARDON, Director, Division of QOccupational Licensing,
Department of Community and Econom c Devel opnent (DCED), said 90
percent of her coments, submitted to the commttee, were not
policy recomendations. She said her witten coments rel ated
to inconsistencies between bill |anguage and the goals to be
achieved [through the | egislation].

M5. REARDON said a policy issue, addressed under nunber 2 of her
coments, says that she recommended that the AHFC board nenber

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- February 2, 2001



be paid for by AHFC She said she knew any increases in the
fiscal note would be of consternation - at |east to the sponsor.

TAPE 01-12, SIDE A

MS. REARDON said she assuned in Version F, page 6, line 10, the
sponsor of the bill neant "conflict of interest” to be defined
as when the licensee has a financial relationship as well as
when the rel atives have a financial relationship.

M5. REARDON asked why a private person shouldn't be able to sue
when a conflict of interest is not disclosed. She said she
wasn't sure why a potential consuner shouldn't have the right to
sue if it was deened appropriate.

M5. REARDON said she agreed that the report should be witten
because only the board, the courts, or others can exam ne the
witten report if the board is to consider the conpetency. She
said she didn't think it would prohibit an inspector from
speaking with a consunmer, while they wal k through a house. She
said the only conpelling report would be the one in witing.

Nunber 0157

M5. REARDON nentioned a point discussed at the last board
nmeeting: the 180-day limt to sue based on the home-inspection
report. She said thinking of an average hone owner, six nonths
is not very nuch time; it is out of step with the litigation
limts that other contracts and professionals have. She said
there is a two- to ten-year limtation on when one can sue over
work. She said the processing tinme between when a new homeowner
buys the house, discovers a problem and files a |awsuit takes
time; neanwhile, the 180-day limt is ticking away.

M5. REARDON said her final concern is the grandfathering or

transitional |icense provision. She wanted to nmake sure the
commttee was aware of how the current bill would play out. She
sai d because of all of the interrelations in effective dates and
transitional |icense provisions, it isn't always easy to see.
She said this isn't conplete grandfathering; a current hone
i nspector can get a transitional license if he or she has taken
certain exanms, but the |icenses cannot be renewed. She said

usually with grandfathering, one neets certain qualifications,
and a license is renewed for the rest of one's career. She said
with other Ilegislation, they decided there wouldn't be any
gr andf at heri ng. She said this was the case with the nanicuri st
licensing, taken up [by the legislature] |ast year.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- February 2, 2001



M5. REARDON said [according to the bill], a person wll be
grandf at hered under certain conditions; those conditions wll
expire six nonths |later and can't be renewed. And upon renewal,
a person has to neet whatever basic licensure requirenents the

board has establi shed. She said she wanted to make sure the
commttee was aware that after January 1, 2003, the sane people
were going to have to neet the new requirenent - whatever it

ends up being. She said it may be good public policy, but she
didn't want to take anyone by surprise when it was carried out.

M5. REARDON said if "they" require everyone to neet the basic
education and training requirements set forth by the board, it
m ght be best to spell out what wll be required to get a
license by January 1, 2003. She said there mght not be nuch
benefit to having a grandfathered |license for [just] six nonths.

Nunber 0448

M5. REARDON said the biggest issue that would be heard after the
bill passes, besides the length of tinme for being able to sue,
woul d be the issue of who did and didn't get grandfathered. She
said people currently in business feel very strongly about this
i ssue. She said since the board has not established the
qualifications for licensure, she didn't know whether nost of
the current hone inspectors would be able to qualify in January
2001.

M5. REARDON said if everyone who is currently practicing
automatically gets a license, none of the bad actors would be
el i m nat ed. She said it is worth thinking about what wll
happen to the current inspectors, so there isn't an unintended
consequence.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he viewed the nenorandum from Ms.
Reardon as the nost insulting thing that he has had presented to
himin his six years in the legislature. He said she has had
two years to do this nenorandum and sai d:

There is possibly one section of this bill that is
different than the legislation ... [that was before]
her division previously. And that is the 180-day
liability issue. And you have the temerity to comment
on it. It is a matter of judicial or legal liability
- it has nothing to do with occupational |icensing.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- February 2, 2001



| find this wholly insulting. | feel appreciative
that there was a hearing, and you came up wth a

menor andum on reconmendati ons two days |ater. But to
do this ... just before the commttee hearing, and you
had two years ... | really take exception to that.

That is not how business should be done, as a
matter of courtesy, and not how it's done in this
| egi sl ature.

Nunber 0621

MS. REARDON sai d she understands that Representative Rokeberg is
very angry but there were a fair nunber of comments that she

bel i eves she made | ast year when the bill canme up - sonme of them
wth a different staff person, and sone of them in public
coment . She referred particularly to the issues of

gr andf at heri ng and requi red exam nati ons.

M5. REARDON said her concern and comrent about the 180-day
liability was an area which, in the earlier bill, had been
pointed out to her as an area of proper concern - she wasn't
sure it was inappropriate for her to conment on the potenti al
affect on the consuner.

M5. REARDON said she understood that it would have been nore
hel pful to Representative Rokeberg if she had brought them up
sooner. She enphasized that her comments were not things that
the division needs, but were generated from reading the bill
careful ly.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said [Ms. Reardon] and her staff have
had neetings [with him, and the bill is now three years old.
He asked Ms. Reardon why she is introducing these suggestions
NOW.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI said she appreciates new information - that the

bill is still being worked on. She agreed with Representative
Rokeberg that this is an area where everyone cannot be pleased.
She said if the conmttee can nmake the bill a little better,

then the commttee would have acconplished what "they" set out
to do.

CHAIR MJURKOMBKI said she had heard that M. Reardon was not

entirely confortable with the version [Version F]. She said M.
Reardon's comments on Wadnesday, January 31, 2001, were very
general . She had asked her staff to call M. Reardon to nmake

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- February 2, 2001



sure she would be here today, so the commttee nenbers could
find out what her concerns were.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he has worked with Ms. Reardon for

six years and said, "I was really surprised by it and very
di sappoi nt ed. | would be happy to work with her in clearing
this up."

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said if the concerns [brought forth by M.
Rear don] have subst ance, t hen it IS t he commttee's
responsibility to address them He said he thought M. Reardon
had a good point about the 180-day limt, and the process people
go through in finding a problemwith a recently purchased house.
[HB 27 was hel d over.]

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:10 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- February 2, 2001



HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- February 2, 2001



HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- February 2, 2001



